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11. Respondent Kristi Noem is the Secretary of the Department of 

Homeland Security, which has ultimate authority over ICE’s detention policies. 

She is sued in her official capacity. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

12. This Court has jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 2241; 5 U.S.C. §§ 

701-706; and the Suspension Clause, U.S. Const. art. I, § 9, cl. 2, and the Fifth 

and Eighth Amendments. Jurisdiction is not limited by nationality or immigration 

status. Boumediene v. Bush, 553 U.S. 723, 747 (2008). 

13. This Court has authority under 28 U.S.C. § 2241 to review Parlikar’s 

detention because Respondents hold him “in custody in violation of the 

Constitution or laws or treaties of the United States.” 28 U.S.C. § 2241(c)(3). The 

REAL ID Act does not strip jurisdiction over challenges to the lawfulness of 

detention. INS v. St. Cyr, 533 U.S. 289, 301 (2001); Lopez-Marroquin v. Barr, 955 

F.3d 759, 759 (9th Cir. 2020). 
14. Venue is proper in this judicial district under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) (2) 

and § 1391(e)(1) because Petitioner is detained at Otay Mesa Detention Center, 

which is located at 7488 Calzada de la Fuente, in San Diego, California—within 

this judicial district. Venue is also proper under 28 U.S.C. § 2243 because 

Petitioner’s immediate custodian resides here. Rumsfeld v. Padilla, 542 U.S. 426, 

451-52 (2004) (Kennedy, J., concurring). 

FACTUAL BACKGROUND 

15. Petitioner Parlikar is a native and citizen of India, born in 1996. He 

entered the United States lawfully in 1999 at age three as an H-4 derivative 

beneficiary. He has resided continuously in the U.S. for over 25 years—virtually 

his entire life. 

16. InJune 2005, Parlikar’s father’s employer filed an EB-3 worker visa 

petition | which USCIS approved in March 2009. While Parlikar 

maintained valid H-4 status, his father filed an I-485 adjustment application in 
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December 2016 i= —=——eamlil, listing Parlikar as a derivative beneficiary. 

This ensured Parlikar remained in a period of stay authorized by the Secretary of 

Homeland Security. U.S. Citizenship & Immigr. Servs., Adjudicator’s Field 

Manual, ch. 40.9.2; U.S. Citizenship & Immigr. Servs., Policy Manual, vol. 7, pt. B, 

ch. 3; 9 FAM 302.11-3(B)(1)(b) (5). 

17. In 2018, after obtaining travel authorization, Parlikar briefly traveled 

abroad to attend his grandfather’s funeral. He re-entered the United States on 

September 12, 2018, via the travel authorization USCIS provided him based on 

his pending adjustment of status application. CBP officers marked “DA” on his 

I-94. Neither USCIS nor CBP advised him that accepting parole would later 

subject him to mandatory detention as an arriving alien. 

18. On April 18, 2025, USCIS issued a Notice to Appear (NTA) 

designating Parlikar as an arriving alien and charging him inadmissibility under 8 

U.S.C. § 1182(a)(7)(A) (i) (D—despite his 25-year residence and his presence in 

the interior of the United States. Removal proceedings are pending before an IJ in 

San Diego, with a master hearing set for December 5, 2025. 

19. On October 20, 2025, ICE summoned Parlikar to an unscheduled 

check-in, detained him, and transferred him to Otay Mesa Detention Center. ICE 

claimed he was subject to mandatory detention under § 1225(b)(2)(A)—a statute 

inapplicable to a long-term resident with no recent entry and who is not seeking 

admission. 

20. Once at Otay Mesa Detention Center, ICE officers pressured Parlikar 

to sign forms falsely stating that he was subject to a removal order (the first 

version stated he had been ordered removed to Iran in 2004; the second stated he 

had been ordered removed to India in September 2025), which he refused. 

21. Parlikar has no criminal history and has complied with all 

immigration requirements. And he has strong equities. Apart from his family and 

community ties, Parlikar graduated from Michigan State University College of Law 
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